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which the religious plans of Zinzendorf and those of the Moravians were combined.
The Protestant confession of the realm was accepted, and a distinct order and
discipline, perpetuating elements of the old Moravian Church, was established
under royal concessions. In 1735 the histotic Moravian episcopate was trans-
ferred to the association by two surviving bishops of the old line who were filling
state church positions in Germany, and the Unitas Fratrum, or Church of the
Brethren, known at the present time in England and America as the Moravian
Church, was established.

The chief purpose of the church was to carry on evangelistic work in Christian
and heathen lands. In accordance with this purpose, the first Moravian mis-
sionary came to Pennsylvania in 1734, and in the same year an attempt was made
at colonization and missionary work in Georgia. David Nitschmann, the first
Moravian bishop in America, who in 1732 had helped to found the first Moravian
mission among the heathen in the West Indies, came to Georgia, in 1736.
Political disturbances ruined the work in Georgia, and in 1740 the colony moved to
Pennsylvania. In 1741 Bishop Nitschmann and his associates founded the town
of Bethlehem, and a little later the neighboring domain belonging to the evan-
gelist, George Whitefield, which he had named Nazareth, was purchased. A
cooperative union to develop the settlements and support missionary work was
formed by the colonists and was maintained until 1762. All labored for a com-
mon cause and received sustenance from a common stock, but there was no
surrender of private property or of personal liberty, nor any individual claim on
the common estate. Missionary work was begun among the Indians and also
among the white settlers.

In 1749 an act of Parliament recognized the Moravian Church as ‘“‘an ancient
Protestant Episcopal Church.” This gave it standing and privileges in all
British dominions; but its policy of doing undenominational leavening work,
with the hope of furthering evangelical alliance, caused it to remain a compara-
tively amall body. In subsequent years it was mainly active in cooperating
with the European branches of the church in the conduct of missions among the
heathen. :

Bethlehem, Naszareth, and Lititz, in Pennsylvania, and 8alem, in Nerth
Carolina, were organized in colonial times as exclusive Moravian villages, after
the model of the Moravian communities in Germany, England, and Holland.
During the years between 1844 and 1856 this exclusive system was abolished,
and the organization of the church was remodeled to suit modern conditions.
At the same time home missionary work was revived, and sinee then the member-
ship of the church in the United Statee has steadily increased.

DOCTRINE

The Moravian Church has no doctrine peculiar to itself. It is simply and
broadly evangelical, in harmony with Protestants generally on the essentials of
Christian teaching, and is bound by no articles on the points of difference between
the historic Protestant creeds. The Moravian principle is “in essentials unity,
in nonessentials liberty, in all things charity.” It holds that the Holy Scriptures,
giving man the inspired word of God, make sufficiently clear all that is essential
to salvation and are an adequate rule of faith and practice. It accepts the
Apostles’ Creed as formulating the prime articles of faith found in the Scriptures
and emphasizes the personal mediatorship of Jesus Christ as very God and very
man, in His life, sufferings, death, and resurrection.

The service for Easter morning contains a compendious statement of the
doctrines held and taught in the Moravian Church, and official doctrinal state~
ments are also contained in the digest of the general synod and in the Moravian
manual, '
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Infant baptism is practiced, by which children become incorporated into the
visible church and are regarded as noncommunicant members until confirmation,
unless by misconduct in riper years they forfeit these privileges. On arriving at
adult age, baptized members, after receiving detailed religious instruction, are
confirtned on application and nonbaptized members are received by baptism, the
usual method being by eprinkling. Admission to the church is by vote of the
board of elders of the congregation concerned, who have full power to grant or
refuse applications. The holy communion i8 open to communicant members
of other churches and is celebrated at least gix times in every year.

ORGANIZATION

In polity the Moravian Church is a modified episcopacy. Everv congrega-
tion has a council composed of communicant members who have attained the
age of 21 years and have subscribed to the rules and regulations of the congre-
gation. At meetings of this council the pastor presides. Each congregation
has also a board of elders, composed of the pastor and of elected communicant
brethren. This board has full power to grant or refuse applications for admis-
sion to the church, and its particular province is the spiritual and moral well-
being of the congregation. The financial and other secular affairs are in the
hands of a board of trustees composed of elected communicant members. These
two boards are sometimes combined, since large liberty in details of organization
is left to the congregations.

The general supervision of the congregation rests with the general and pro-
vincial synods. The American branch of the church, composed of a northern
and a southern province, and the European branches are federated in a  Unity,”
with a general synod, which is an international representative body meeting at
least once in a decade. There is a general constitution of the Unity and a
separate constitution for each province. The general synod deals with matters
of faith and discipline that are the common concern of the Unity and controls
various joint enterprises of all the provinces, particularly the foreign missions.
It elects & mission board in which each province is represented. This mission
board and the executive boards of the several provinces together constitute the
Directing Board of the Unity.

The highest authority in each province is the provincial synod, in which
clergy and laity are about equally represented. The meetings of the synod in
the northern province of America usually take place twice in a decade, and more
frequently in the southern province. The synod directs the missions, educa-
tional work, and publications in the province; and it elects an executive board,
called, in the American provinces, the Provincial Elders’ Conference, to administer
the government of the province between the meetings of the synod.

There are three orders of the ministry—bishops, presbyters, and deacons.
Deacons are authorized to preach and administer the sacraments. They are
ordained to the second order of presbyters after they have served a certain length
of time and have been intrusted either with the care of a congregation or with
the direction of some branch of church work. The bishops are elected by the
general and provineial synods and have the exclusive right to ordain the ministers
of the church. They are as such represented in the membership of general
synods and are ex-officio members of the provincial synods of the province in
which they reside but do not exercise personal superintendence of the work of
the church, either general or diocesan, and always have boards of conferences
assoclated with them. In such boards they officiate, not by episcopal right
but by aynodical election, and it is not uncommon for bishops, when not occupy-
ing executive positions, to serve in pastorates like the presbyters.
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The church has an established liturgy, with a litany for S8unday morning and
a variety of services for different church seasons, the general order of the ancient
church year being observed.

WORK

The work of the Moravian Church is, first, missionary, then evangelistic, then
educational. All the other normal activities—literary, philanthropic, sociological,
and cultural—incident to church life also find their place. The missionary part
has reference especially to the foreign missionary work of the church, which has
been for nearly 200 years its largest and best-known enterprise. The foreign
missions are conducted under the superintendency of an international mission
board of five members, including representatives of the Continental, British,
and American provinces of the church. This board has its seat in Europe. The
provincial boards of the various provinces act, conjointly, as a general directory
to which the mission board is responsible, and, scparately, as agents for the
mission board. Since the World War the administration of the various fields
has been assigned to the Provincial Mission Boards, with offices in Bethlehem,
Pa., London, England, and Herrnhut, Saxony.

The missionary work is carried on in 13 fields, including North, Central, and
South America; 10 of the West Indian Islands; South Africa; East Central Africa;
the borders of Tibet; and among the lepers in Jerusalem. The report for 1926
shows 136 stations occupied, with 170 outstations and 335 preaching places;
45 American and 224 European missionaries, with 2,265 native missionaries and
helpers; and 136 organized churches, with 36,242 communicant members; total
membership, 106,711. There were 251 day schools, with 26,566 pupils, in charge
of 759 teachers; 4 teachers’ training schools and theological seminaries, with 118
students; § hospitals and dispensaries; and 188 Sunday schools, with 1,190
teachers and 24,448 pupils. The annual cost of the foreign mission work of the
three provincial boards of the Moravian Church amounts to possibly half a
million dollars; and of this sum the American Moravians, in 1926, contributed
$84,883, while the amount contributed by them for all purposes in the foreign
field, not including the work among the Indians and Eskimos, was $68,080. As
a consequence of the World War several fields were lost permanently, so that
there has been a marked decrease in the number of missionaries since that time; -
but taking into consideration the entire Moravian Church, there is a foreign
missionary worker for every 134 communicant members at home.

The evangelistic, or home missionary work, of the Moravian Church was until
recent years rather an effort for a deeper spiritual life everywhere than an attempt
at church extension. This aim is not forgotten, and an official provincial evan-
gelist, under the direction of an evangelistic committee, gives his time to this
purely spiritual work. In later years, however, much of the work has taken the
form of home missions, carried on in the English, German, and Scandinavian
languages, in 14 States of the Union and in Western Canada. The supervision
of the work is in the hands of the executive board of the three districts of the
church, in conjunction with various home mission societies, although the funds
and general collections are administered by the provincial church extension
board. In 1926, $21,995 was contributed by the congregations of the northern
province for expenditures in this branch of missions, and 24 agents were employed,
who cared for 40 churches.

Though classed by this church with foreign missions, the work among the
Indians of California and the Eskimos of Alaska is in close connection with the
home mission work and is so included in this statement. For the Indian work,
$3,145 was contributed in 1926, and for work among the Eekimos, $13,858.
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Thus, the total sum contributed by the Moravians of the United States for home
mission work was $38,798. To this latter sum should be added the returns, the
figures for which are not available but amounting in some years to several
thousands of dollars, which are derived from various industries carried on by
the Eskimos under the general direction of the church, in behalf of missions.

The Moravian Church has given special attention to educational institutions.
In the United States there are six schools for higher education, the oldest
of which, the Moravian Seminary and College for Women at Bethlehem, Pa.,
weas the second girl’s boarding school in the United States, founded in 1749.
Others are at Nazareth, Pa., founded in 1755, at Lititz, Pa., in 1794, and at
Winston-Salem, N. C., in 1802. The Moravian College and Theological Sem-
inary, at Bethlehem, Pa., were founded in 1807. These schools are under the
" control of boards of trustees elected by the provincial synods and accountable
to them. They are philanthropic in purpose and do much charitable work.

The philanthropic institutions under Moravian auspices include, in the northern
province, & home for the widows of Moravian ministers and a home for aged
women, at Bethlehem, Pa., the Ephrata Home for furloughed or retired mission-
aries, at Nazareth, Pa., and the home for aged women at Lititz, Pa., The prop-
erty value of the four, in 1926, was estimated at $85,000 and their endowment
at $47,251. In the southern province there are four benevolent institutions.

The official publications of the Moravian Church in America, besides hym-
nals, catechisms, etc., include 2 weekly, 3 monthbly, and 2 annual journals. The
headquarters for publications is the Moravian Book Store, Bethlebem, Pa.

The Moravian Church, as a historic church, maintains several valuable his-
torical collections. At Bethlehem, Pa., are found the *‘ Archives’ of the church,
including valuable manuscripts and rare printed volumes, the Malin Library of
Moravian Literature, in which are gathered over 1,350 books dealing with the
history and interests of the church, and the collection in the Harvey Memorial
Library. The Moravian Historical Society, organized in 1857, has its library
and museum in the bistoric Whitefield house, at Nazareth, Pa.



